
         

 

 

VERONA WALK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

COLLIER COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APRIL 17, 2025 
10:00 A.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.veronawalkcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Town Center at Verona Walk 

8090 Sorrento Lane 
Naples, Florida 34114 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
April 17, 2025 

10:00 a.m. 
Call-In:  800-743-4099   Participant Passcode: 7423990 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

D. Establish Quorum 

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. March 20, 2025 Regular Board Meeting……………………………………………………….......Page 2 

G. Presentation – Tamarindo Proposal to Discharge into Verona Walk…………………………………...Page 6 

H. Old Business 

1. Update on CDD/HOA Maintenance Memo of Understanding……………………………………..Page 34 

I. New Business 

1. Premier Lakes Status Update & Chemicals Used 

2. Consider Resolution No. 2025-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Proposed Budget………..Page 44 

J. Administrative Matters 

1. District Attorney Update 

2. District Engineer Update 

a. Update on Contract for Pipe Tv-ing 

3. Field Inspector Update……………………………………………………………………………...Page 52 

4. District Manager Update 

a. Financials……………………………………………………………………………………….Page 53 

b. Upcoming Meetings 

 May 15, 2025 

K. Comments from the Public 

L. Board Member Comments 

M. Adjourn 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 20, 2025 

 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The March 20, 2025, Regular Board Meeting of the Verona Walk Community Development District 
(the “District”) was called to order at 10:00 a.m. at the Town Center at Verona Walk located at 8090 
Sorrento Lane, Naples, Florida 34114.  
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
C. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in 
the Naples Daily News on October 7, 2024, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Meeting 
Schedule, as legally required.  
 
D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 

 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was 
in order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairperson Marilyn Czubkowski Present 
Vice Chairman Peter Monti Present 
Supervisor Roger Roy Present 
Supervisor Jack Hogan Present 
Supervisor Michael Kurzawski Present 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely Special District Services, Inc. 

General Counsel Greg Urbancic (via phone) Coleman Yovanovich Koester 

Field Inspector Bohdan Hirniak Special District Services, Inc. 

District Engineer Terry Cole (via phone) Hole Montes, Inc. 

 
Also present were the following: 
 
Ron Talbot, Ken Muckenhaupt, Herb Czeschin, Libby Barrick, Beth Boland, Chris Briggs and 
Terence Smith. 
 
E. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

 
Ms. Meneely requested and it was the consensus of the Board to add a discussion regarding the 
Engineering RFQ under Old Business. 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 1.  February 20, 2025, Regular Board Meeting  

 
The February 20, 2025, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for approval.   
 
A motion was made by Mr. Roy, seconded by Mr. Kurzawski and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the February 20, 2025, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS  

 1.  Further Discussion Regarding CDD/HOA Maintenance Responsibilities/Easements 

 
Ms. Czubkowski stated that the HOA did not pass a change in wording from “may to shall” regarding 
maintenance responsibilities.  She believes the CDD attorney should work with the HOA to gather 
information and discuss who owns what easement and interpret maintenance responsibilities.  Mr. 
Urbancic added that if the CDD accepted assignment then we have the maintenance responsibilities 
even if the plat says one thing – the assignment says another and takes precedence.  He suggested the 
engineer do an overlay map of where the CDD accepted responsibility.  There was general discussion 
regarding the previous agreement between the HOA and the CDD for maintenance and Ms. Meneely 
went over the background on how that agreement came to be canceled.  There was a consensus of the 
Board authorizing Ms. Czubkowski to work with the attorney, the engineer and the HOA to come to 
some resolution on the issue.   
 
 2.  (ADDED)  Engineering RFQ 

 
Ms. Meneely stated that Bowman had contacted her and agreed to remain the District’s engineer with 
John Baker eventually taking over for Terry Cole.  She asked for ratification of the Chairman’s 
decision to pull the RFQ for a new engineer from publication.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Monti, seconded by Mr. Roy and passed unanimously ratifying the 
District Engineer decision and staying with Bowman as the engineer of record. 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Discussion Regarding HOA Election Results Concerning CDD Maintenance Items 

 
This item was previously discussed above. 
 
 2.  Discussion Regarding Street Drainpipe Inspection 

 
Ms. Czubkowski stated that she had spoken to Mr. Hirniak about doing some type of annual pipe 
inspections and would speak with the engineer regarding the cost of spot checking, noting that the 
community was over twenty years old.  Mr. Hogan suggested that money be allocated in the upcoming 
budget in order to complete a portion every year. 
 
 3.  Premier Lakes Status Update 

 
Ms. Czubkowski stated that the reports Premier had been providing were good and are provided every 
time they visit the community.  She distributed the reports to review and summarized, noting that the 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

need to minimize spike rush was explained.  Discussion regarding spraying under bridges ensued and 
Mr. Hirniak explained that all would be sprayed.  Mr. Monti asked if there was comfort on the specific 
herbicides being used and Mr. Hirniak stated that he would provide the Board with the chemical 
information.  Ms. Czubkowski stated that representatives from the company could also attend 
meetings in order to answer questions. 
 
 4.  Discussion Regarding Budget Items for Fiscal Year 2025/2025 Budget 

 
Ms. Czubkowski stated that now was the time to increase or reallocate funding and discussion ensued 
about the budget including pipe tv-ing and street sweeping.  Mr. Monti encouraged the HOA to 
reconsider their decision to discontinue street sweeping.  
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

 1.  District Attorney Update 

 
Mr. Urbancic stated that the legislative session started two weeks ago and he would keep the Board 
updated on issues that would impact the CDD. 
 
 2.  District Engineer Update 

 
Mr. Cole stated that he received an executive summary yesterday from Tamarindo, the development 
having water control issues.  He stated that he had not had time to review it and continued that he was 
meeting with Ms. Czubkowski and Mr. Hirniak tomorrow to review the maintenance responsibility 
issue and would also review the Tamarindo report with them.  Discussion ensued about whether there 
were any benefits to taking their extra water and Ms. Czubkowski stated that it was unknown and 
would be presented at the next meeting if the full report had been received by the engineer. 
 
 3.  Field Inspector Update 

 
Mr. Hirniak stated that the community was in the middle of dry season and has had 1/3 of the normal 
amount of rain but is close to the average for the past 6-7 years.  He noted that the water quality 
looked good and went over the current pool construction projects.  Ms. Czubkowski asked if the 
pumps the HOA had put in were working and Mr. Hirniak stated that of the two wells, one was 
working. 
 
 4.  District Manager Update 

• Financials 

 
Ms. Meneely went over the financials and there were no questions from the Board Members. 
 
Ms. Meneely reminded the Board of the upcoming April 17, 2025, meeting when the proposed budget 
would be on the agenda. 
 
J. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 
Ms. Barrick asked about the additional spike rush treatments that were added to last year’s budget 
and Ms. Czubkowski explained how the new vendor was increasing the ongoing treatments. 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Mr. Talbot asked about the bridges and controlling the spike rush.  He showed the Board photos of 
the bridge near his residence and wanted them to look good in order to maintain home values.  Mr. 
Monti agreed with protecting the home values and asked that Premier work on the bridges, noting 
that some of the photos show growth that is not spike rush but algae that feeds on phosphorus from 
lawns. 
 
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further comments from the Board Members. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned 
at 11:14 on a motion made by Mr. Roy, seconded by Mr. Hogan and that motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 5



Tamarindo CDD Stormwater Discharge to 
VeronaWalk CDD Surface Water Management System

Executive Summary

Prepared for:
Forestar Group, Inc.

4042 Park Oaks Drive, Suite 200
Tampa, FL 33610

Prepared By:

6610 Willow Park Drive
Suite 200

Naples, FL 34109

Dated: April 4, 2025 (rev 4)

___________________________
Christopher O. Wright, P.E.

    Florida License No. 47059

Page 6



C:\Users\Cowright\Downloads\2025-04-04 VeronaWalk CDD Executive Summary (rev 4).docx

1

VeronaWalk CDD Executive Summary

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Attachment I – Proposed Tamarindo CDD Revised Control Elevation Exhibit 

Attachment II – Proposed Tamarindo CDD Discharge Point - Alternative I

Attachment III – SFWMD RAI Dated March 7, 2025

Attachment IV – Wetlands Evaluation Memo

Attachment V – Proposed Tamarindo CDD Discharge to VeronaWalk CDD Lakes – Alternative II

Attachment VI – VeronaWalk Approved ERP Plan Sheets

Page 7



C:\Users\Cowright\Downloads\2025-04-04 VeronaWalk CDD Executive Summary (rev 4).docx

2 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PROJECT SITE DESCRIPTION

The Tamarindo CDD is adjacent to the VeronaWalk CDD on the north side of Sabal Palm Rd. and 
east of Collier Blvd (SR 951) within Section 23, Township 50 South, Range 26 East, Collier 
County, Florida. 

The Tamarindo CDD is currently undergoing a modification to permit #11-103330-P under 
application #240916-45732. This permit modification proposes to raise the control elevation for 
Lakes 1 and 2 to elevation 6.71 NAVD.  Lakes 3 and 4 will remain at control elevation 5.71 NAVD 
since those lakes are closer to the CR 951 canal, which has a lower control elevation.  

The proposed modifications to the Tamarindo CDD surface water management system is 
required as a result of significantly higher control elevations from nearby projects to the north 
of Tamarindo that were permitted and constructed after the issuance of the original permit for 
the Tamarindo site . For example, Hacienda, Amerimed Center, and Estilo were all permitted 
with control elevations that are on average about 3 ft higher than Tamarindo’s existing control 
elevation. These higher control elevations are causing the Tamarindo lake elevations to remain 
higher than the Tamarindo permitted control elevation throughout the rainy season due to 
groundwater inflow coming from the NE into the Tamarindo lakes.  With the Tamarindo surface 
water management system unable to return to control elevation, it is causing less available 
stormwater storage for summer rain fall events. This causes localized road flooding within the 
community. In order to offset the groundwater inflow into the Tamarindo lakes in Basins 1 & 2, 
control structures are being added to raise the control elevation for Lakes 1 & 2 by one foot, as 
shown in Attachment I – Proposed Tamarindo CDD Revised Control Elevation Exhibit.   

PROPOSED PROJECT

The Tamarindo CDD Water Management System consists of one (1) major basin divided into 
five (5) sub-basins one per each of the four wet detention lakes and one for the preserve area. 
The total water management basin area is 103.50 acres. The existing wet detention lakes will 
provide water quality and attenuation for the project. Lakes 3 and 4 will have a control 
elevation of 5.71 ft NAVD, while Lakes 1 and 2 will be controlled at elevation 6.71 ft NAVD
(previously controlled at 5.71 ft NAVD). 

The last submittal to the SFWMD made on February 5, 2025, proposed to improve the 
Tamarindo CDD surface water management system performance by making the following 
changes to the existing Tamrindo CDD surface water management system: 

• Install outfall pipe with inlets to accept Amity Road Drainage and convey to CR951 canal.

Page 8



C:\Users\Cowright\Downloads\2025-04-04 VeronaWalk CDD Executive Summary (rev 4).docx

3

• Create additional stormwater storage in Basin 3 by excavating portions of the FPL 
easement to elevation 6.7 NAVD.

• Raise control elevation for Lakes 1, 2 to elevation 6.71 ft NAVD.

• Add Control structure in Lake 3 to regulate discharge from Lake 2.

• Modify Control Structure (CS) #1 slightly to control discharge to no more than allowable 
discharge of 0.06 cfs/acre.

• Add an outfall pipe from Lake 1 to SE corner of Tamarindo Amenity Site to discharge to 
the Sabal Palm Road swale.  

o Add a stormwater pump located in the SE corner of the property for an 
emergency pump. The emergency pump is designed to turn on above the water 
quality stage.  

o A control structure is located downstream of the pump well with a bleeder at 
elevation 6.71 ft NAVD to allow Lake 1 to return to control and discharge to the 
adjacent Sabal Palm Road swale.  

• Add ±3,470 LF of 14” pipe from stormwater pump and extend east along Sabal Palm 
Road with ultimate discharge to conservation east of the VeronaWalk CDD, shown in 
Attachment II – Proposed Tamarindo CDD Discharge Point (Alternative 1).

Recently new comments from the SFWMD were received on March 7, 2025 for the current 
application under review, as shown in Attachment III. The revised application proposes 
increasing the allowable discharge rate to approximately 0.11 cfs per acre, excluding the 2.7 cfs 
estimated from groundwater inflow. This solution is supported by hydrologic modeling and 
analysis, demonstrating that discharge to the Sabal Palm Road and CR 951 canals will not 
adversely affect the Henderson Creek basin. The increased recovery rate will provide the 
necessary stormwater storage between storm events and help return water levels to near the 
permitted control elevation more quickly, thereby improving system performance and avoiding 
road flooding within the community.   The additional 8 cfs discharge to the wetlands east of 
VeronaWalk CDD is being accommodated in an area that can both handle and needs additional 
water to support the existing wetland hydrology. 

CURRENTLY PROPOSED DISCHARGE

To provide for the higher discharge rate leaving the Tamarindo CDD Stormwater Management 
System, an emergency stormwater pump is proposed that is connected to Lake 1 and will pump 
to the VeronaWalk CDD system. With the addition of the stormwater pump, the discharge to 
the CR 951 canal has been reduced from the previously permitted rate of 6.18 cfs to 3.37 cfs.  
This stormwater pump is designed to convey up to 8 cfs via 14” diameter pipe along Sabal Palm 
Road.  This pipe will be installed along the south side of Sabal Palm Road approximately 3,400 ft
east of the entrance to Tamarindo.  It terminates in a low area that will sheet flow south into 

Page 9



C:\Users\Cowright\Downloads\2025-04-04 VeronaWalk CDD Executive Summary (rev 4).docx

4

wetland east of VeronaWalk and then will sheet flow to the south. See Attachment IV –
Wetland Evaluation Memo for the receiving wetland analysis.  

PROPOSED TAMARINDO CDD CONNECTION TO VERONAWALK CDD LAKE

When we respond to the current set of review comments from the SFWMD we plan to propose 
an alternative stormwater discharge location pending the approval of the VeronaWalk CDD 
Board of Supervisors. This alternative discharge location from the Tamarindo CDD SWM system, 
will be a direct discharge from Tamarindo CDD WMS into the VeronaWalk CDD lakes that are 
located in Drainage Basin DA-2 as shown in Attachment V – Proposed Tamarindo CDD 
Discharge to VeronaWalk CDD Lakes (Alternative 2). The 14” pipe from the proposed 
Tamarindo pump well would convey a maximum of 8 cfs from the Tamarindo CDD SWM system 
to VeronaWalk CDD Drainage Basin DA-2 prior to discharge into the wetlands located just 
outside of the property line in the southeastern corner of the project via the existing control 
structure CS 2/7A. Proposed modifications to the existing control structure would be required
to ensure the Basin DA-2 lakes do not increase from the 25-year/ 3-day peak stage (8.81 ft 
NAVD) or minimum roadway elevations (9.21 ft NAVD) as was originally permitted, highlighted 
in yellow on the VeronaWalk Approved ERP Plans in Attachment VI. By allowing the discharge 
from Tamarindo CDD to flow through VeronaWalk,CDD the combined discharge from both sites 
will have a singular discharge point to the eastern wetlands vs. what was recently submitted to 
the SFWMD on February 5, 2025. 

The peak stages for VeronaWalk CDD Drainage Basin DA-2 will not increase from the previously 
permitted values due to the bypass of the Tamarindo CDD discharge flows. Therefore, the 
constructed minimum roadway elevation for Drainage Basin DA-2 will be impacted, as shown in 
Table 1 and highlighted in Attachment VI. While the proposed control elevation for Tamarindo 
CDD Drainage Basin 1 is 6.71 ft NAVD, the pumped discharge should have no adverse effects on 
the control elevation of 6.21 NAVD for Drainage Basin DA-2 because of the increased discharge 
from CS 2/7A. Additionally, the wetland habitats within Drainage Basin DA-7A (located 
immediately south of CS 2/7A) will benefit from the additional 8 cfs discharge from the 
Tamarindo CDD as noted in Attachment IV – Wetland Evaluation Memo.

Table 1. VeronaWalk Basin DA-2 - Key Performance Value

VeronaWalk Basin DA-2 Currently P
Control (NAVD) 6.21 6.21 (no impact)
25 Year – 8.81 8.81 (no impact)

8.91 8.91 (no impact)
Min Road on Plans (NAVD) 9.21 9.21(no impact)
CS 2/7A Discharge (cfs) 38.75 46.75 (increased by 8 cfs )

Page 10



C:\Users\Cowright\Downloads\2025-04-04 VeronaWalk CDD Executive Summary (rev 4).docx

5 

CONCLUSION

To provide for a higher discharge rate leaving the Tamarindo CDD Stormwater Management 
System, an emergency stormwater pump from Lake 1 is proposed to the SFWMD under 
Application No. 240916-45732. This stormwater pump is designed to convey up to 8 cfs via 14” 
diameter pipe that will discharge directly into the VeronaWalk CDD lake system as shown in 
Attachment V (Alternative 2).  To mitigate the effects of the discharge from the Tamarindo 
SWM system, it is proposed to modify the existing control structure CS 2/7A highlighted in red
as shown in Attachment VI and belonging to the VeronaWalk CDD. 

Proposed modifications to the existing control structure include lowering the existing grate by 
12” from 9.31 ft NAVD to 8.31 ft NAVD and widening the existing overflow weir from 3.5 t wide 
to 7 ft wide. This will help ensure the lakes located within Drainage Basin DA-2 lakes do not 
increase in the 25-year/ 3-day storm event during peak stage times as was originally permitted
and constructed. 

By allowing the extra discharge from the Tamarindo CDD to flow into then through VeronaWalk
CDD, the combined discharge from both sites will have a singular discharge point to the eastern 
wetlands vs. what was recently submitted to the SFWMD on February 5, 2025.  A full copy of 
this ERP submittal is included within the attached link.

(https://consult-rwa.sharefile.com/d-s003e11b571984c9c90b778d44410638d).

Furthermore, there are no impacts to the VeronaWalk CDD Surface Water Management System 
as evidenced in the Table 1 - VeronaWalk Basin DA-2 - Key Performance Values.  

Planned benefits to the VeronaWalk CDD surface water management system will include an 
extra supply of stormwater that will potentially recharge the lakes and keep the surface of the 
lakes at a higher elevation than normal under current conditions. 

Lastly, the wetland habitats in located within Drainage Basin DA-7A (located immediately south 
of CS 2/7A and just outside of the VeronaWalk residential community) will benefit from the 
additional 8 cfs storm water discharge from Tamarindo CDD as noted in Attachment IV – 
Wetland Evaluation Memo.

Page 11



ATTACHMENT I

Proposed Tamarindo CDD Control Elevation Exhibit

Page 12



D
-X

D-X

SI
N

GL
E 

W
AT

ER
 S

ER
VI

CE
 (T

YP
.)

13
.0

12
.4

7.6

8.6

8.6

8.9
8

8.8
0

8.5
0

8.5
0

8.83

8.5
2

8.5
4

8.6
4

8.5
5

8.3
0

8.1
1

8.4
9

8.6
5

8.0
8.1

6
8.6

6

8.3
0

6.4
8.5

8
7.8

7.9

7.4

7.4

8.6
4

7.9

8.3
2

8.2
1

8.0

8.2

7.7

6.98.2
1

8.1
8 7.2 7.9

8.3
9

7.2
8.4

1

7.9

8.0
5

8.0
9

8.0
0

7.9
1

7.8
0

7.7
8

7.8
6

7.7
4

7.6
0

7.5
3

9.6
5

7.9
4

7.8
4

6.0

5.8

5.8

6.0

7.9

7.4

8.2

7.9

8.3

7.9

8.1

9.2

8.1

8.2
7.6

7.4

7.4

9.4

10
.1

9.8 9.6 9.6 10
.1

9.6

9.5

9.2

9.5

9.7

9.6

9.2

7.9

7.5

7.5

8.1

6.7

8.
3

8.2

8.1

7.7
4

8.3
7

8.1
3

8.1
4

7.2

7.4

7.7

8.9

6.1

6.4

6.2

5.8
6.5

5.6

18
" C

M
P

IN
V.

 E
L.=

5.
84

'

18
" C

M
P

IN
V.

 E
L.=

5.
84

'

24
" R

CP
IN

V.
 E

L.=
5.

87
'

24
" R

CP
IN

V.
 E

L.=
5.

97
'

36
" R

CP
IN

V.
 E

L.=
4.

20
'

10
.15
10

.08

9.9
0

10
.01

9.9
6

9.9
4

10
.03

9.8
7

9.1
1

8.5
6

8.6
3

8.5
8

8.5
2

8.5
6

8.5
4

8.4
4

8.5
4

8.4
3

8.4
6

8.5
6

8.5
7

12
.05

12
.20

11
.54

10
.2

11
.9

11
.9

11
.7

3.53.7

11.
4212

.05

9.9

11
.85 11

.79 11
.70 11

.53

9.8
11

.85
11

.19 11
.6

11
.3

10.
95

10
.85

11
.55

9.4

11
.51

11
.44

11
.44 IN

LE
T

TO
P 

EL
.=

8.
87

'

11
.34

10
.60

11
.0

IN
LE

T
TO

P 
EL

.=
10

.3
3'

PI
PE

IN
V.

 E
L.=

3.
71

'

10
.9

10
.67

11
.48

11
.77

11
.98

12
.00

11
.7611

.61
11

.4111
.6512

.07 12
.21 12

.07 11
.80 11

.45

10
.74 11

.111
.611

.29

10
.99

11
.32

10
.8210

.4

11
.6

11
.6

11
.32

11.999.9

11
.8511

.59

9.5

11
.61

10
.94 11
.311

.1
10

.69 IN
LE

T
TO

P 
EL

.=
10

.1
6'

11
.37

IN
LE

T
TO

P 
EL

.=
8.

84
'

11
.4211

.64

9.3

11
.61

11.00

11
.411

.4

11
.2111

.87

9.4

11
.8212

.11

9.8
12

.24
11

.55 11

.911
.9

11
.63

12
.27

9.7

12
.16

11
.88

9.9

11
.96

11
.30

11
.611

.4

11.03

11
.63

9.7

11
.52

11
.34

IN
LE

T
TO

P 
EL

.=
8.

88
'

11
.37

10.
71

11
.011

.4

11
.0211

.67

10
.0

11
.61

11
.8

11
.37 11

.84

12
.12

12
.42

12
.60

12
.45

11
.90

11
.78

11
.64

12
.1

12
.0 11

.8

11.
6

11
.8

12
.011

.2
12

.0

11
.84

11
.77

11
.69

11
.13

9.02

9.0
2

10
.48

11.
82

11
.91

11
.98

8.0

1.4
1.1
1.0

0.9

0.9

1.4

6.93.6

3.2 3.1

2.9

8.2 8.2

3.3

3.6 3.7

3.9
8.1 8.2

3.4 3.5

4.0

7.6 4.8

4.2

3.4 3.4

4.5
6.9

3.4

4.6
7.1

4.4
7.3

3.8 3.7

4.5
7.0

4.6
6.7

3.5

5.3

5.
14.9 5.3

5.4

5.0

6.2

5.85.1

5.0

1.10.9

7.8 7.9

8.3 7.2

8.4
8

8.2
0

7.9
9

8.6
1

8.4
3

8.6
5

8.6
7.0

7.1 6.2 6.6

7.2 7.4 7.2

7.5

7.2

8.2

9.0

7.3

7.8

9.7

7.6

7.3

8.8

8.1

7.9
7.77.36.17.37.4

7.07.1

7.1

7.5

6.8 7.7 8.4 8.5

8.6

6.4 7.1 6.9 6.7 7.0

7.3

7.4

7.9

7.88.1

8.4

8.2 7.9

8.3

8.6

7.6

6.7

7.1 6.9

7.3 7.47.2

7.0 7.07.1

6.7 6.76.7

8.76.38.7

7.97.08.5

8.55.57.5

30
" P

IP
E

IN
V.

 E
L.=

6.
59

'
30

" P
IP

E
IN

V.
 E

L.=
6.

67
'

7.6

7.2

7.0

7.1

7.3

6.7

7.17.9

7.07.7

7.08.1

7.18.3

6.37.3

6.67.7

8.8

8.0

7.9

7.7

7.7

6.5

7.7

6.4

6.6

7.2

6.8 8.7

8.77.1

7.7 9.7

9.27.2

9.
08.0

8.1 8.4 8.6 8.5
8.5

6.3
6.8

7.8
8.5

8.3

8.1

8.2

8.8

8.78.78.48.48.98.2 8.1 8.1 6.5 7.8

8.18.38.68.98.0 8.5 8.5 8.3

7.8

8.9

8.2
8.2

7.7

8.2

7.9

8.4

8.1

8.0

8.0

8.4

8.9
8.7

8.4 9.1

8.0

8.5

7.5

8.7

9.2
9.1

8.6
8.8

9.1

8.8
8.3

8.3

7.8

7.8

8.1

7.0 7.8

7.7

8.2

8.5
7.7

7.8

7.0

8.7 9.3 9.2

8.9

9.0

8.8

8.5

8.5

8.4

8.2

8.9

8.2
8.2

8.3

9.1

9.6

10
.0 9.2

9.59.7

13
.9

9.2
9.1

9.3

9.3

7.9

8.0

9.0

8.8

8.0

6.8

6.0

5.8

7.8
7.8

7.7

6.2

8.4 8.2 8.4

8.3

8.3

8.3

8.6

8.0

8.0

6.9

6.9

5.4

7.7

8.2

7.8

8.3

6.8

6.3

7.1

8.1 7.8

7.7

7.5

7.0

6.4

7.2

6.7
8.7

8.5

8.4
8.0

8.1
8.4

6.96.96.66.16.9

7.3

7.3

7.3

13
.0

12
.4

10.7

7.6

8.6

8.6

8.3
5

8.5
2

8.4
8

8.7
5 8.5

8.5

8.3

8.4

8.4
8.0

8.0 7.0
7.8

8.2 6.7

8.1

7.8 7.6 8.3 8.6
0 8.2 7.2

7.9

8.2

8.1 7.8 8.4 8.8
3 8.3 7.1 7.5 7.7 8.09.1

8

8.8
8.3
8.6
7.3

8.0 7.6 8.3

8.0
8.4

8.1

8.
2

7.6
8.3

8.1 8.6

8.2
7.9

8.0

8.48.2

8.5

8.4

8.8

8.5

8.5 8.7

8.2

8.38.18.1

8.1

8.6
8.7 8.6 8.4

8.5

8.6

8.6

7.9

8.0

8.3

10
.2

10
.4

10
.3

7.77.87.7

7.2 7.36.4

6.9
7.1

6.8

6.8

6.8

6.4

7.3

6.8

7.2
7.5

8.37.8 8.2

8.1

8.7

8.1

7.7

7.4

7.7

7.3

6.46.8

7.3

6.9

6.9

7.5

6.87.07.2 7.8 8.1

8.3 7.97.77.9

8.2
1

9.5
9.6

9.4

7.4 7.7 7.47.89.5

9.8 11
.2

10
.2

9.68.5 9.59.08.5

8.4

9.7

10
.5

8.68.4

9.7

8.9

8.5

9.18.0

9.3

7.9

8.3

7.7

8.0

8.0

7.9

7.7

7.9

7.2

8.2

8.2

7.9

8.1

7.6

8.0

7.4

7.8
7.7

7.5

8.0

7.9 8.2

8.47.8

9.0

8.2 8.1

7.8

8.2
8.4

7.7
67.7

6

8.1
6

8.1
1

8.3
1

8.2
18.6

6

8.8
1

10.
81

9.7
1

7.9
1

10
.33

10
.48

10
.88

8.9
2

8.9
4 8.8

6
8.7

2
8.5

7
8.4

3

8.5
5

9.0

8.6
2

8.6
2

8.4

8.4

8.0

7.0

7.0

10
.1

10
.1

8.6
0

8.6
0

7.9

10
.42

8.7
2

7.8
8

8.5
7

8.5
5

8.3 10
.0

9.27.28.5
5

8.5
9

7.4
2

5.5

8.5
5

8.5
4

7.0 9.0

8.6
5

8.6
4

7.6 9.2

8.6
7

8.6
5

7.2 8.9

8.67.08.6
2
8.6

1

8.6
6

8.6
4

7.1 8.6
8.6

4

8.6
5

7.3 8.7

8.2 8.7
6

8.7
8

6.9 8.9

8.7
4

8.7
8

7.9
1

8.3
8 8.1

1

8.3 5.6

8.2
5

8.2
6

8.3
0

8.1
8

8.1
0

8.0
8

8.1
4

8.2
6

7.3

8.1

7.7

8.1

8.1

8.2
8

8.0
9

8.2
2

8.6
0

8.6
8.6
8.6

6

8.6
0

8.5
9

9.0

8.8

8.8

9.0

8.3 5.7
8.1

8.2
5

8.0
8

8.1
97.4

6.3

6.8

7.6 9.1
2

9.2
1

9.6
9.9

6

9.7
9

10
.1

10
.0

10
.08 9.9

2
8.1

0

9.9
7

10
.12

9.5 9.9
9

10
.10

8.2
0

5.9

9.9
7

10
.06

10
.13
10

.00 9.6

6.1

8.1
2

10
.09

10
.21

10
.27 10

.14 9.86.18.3
9

9.6 10
.11

10
.25

10
.25
10

.08 9.6

5.9

8.6
5

9.7 10
.11

10
.29

6.
01

14
-2

2"
x"

 E
RC

P
6.

12
14

-2
2"

x"
 E

RC
P5.
86

12
-1

8"
x"

 E
RC

P
5.

70
12

-1
8"

x"
 E

RC
P

10
.10

10
.86

11
.67

10
.33 10
.19

10
.45 10
.34 10

.14 9.9
9

9.68.4
10

.0
9.8

8.3

9.4
5

9.3
0

9.38.68.6
4

8.5

8.48
.56

8.6 9.2
8.2 8.9

9
8.9

6

8.8

8.5
2

8.3
1

8.38.4
2

8.2

8.28.4
6 8.3

8.1
9
8.1

2

7.98.1

7.97.9
4

8.0
7.9 7.9

7.9 8.0
8.0

7.9
9

7.8
4

7.77.8

7.9
0

8.0
78.

128.1
8

8.3
0

7.9
18.1

4

8.5
8

7.9
9 7.8

5 7.9
08.0

8.0 7.8
7

7.8
3

7.9
2

8.0
0

8.0
7.3
8.1

7.1
7.7

7.7
9

7.9
8

7.5
4 7.5

3
8.0

68.1
4

8.1

8.
32

8.4
8

7.9

8.2
38.5

6 8.7
4

8.
46

8.3
8

7.87.8

6.86.9

8.
358.4

4

8.9
7

9.1
2

8.7
3

8.4
3

8.2
38.5

3
8.6

9

8.3

9.0
6 8.6

0

8.4
8

8.4
4

8.4
6

8.4
6

8.3

7.5 7.8
7.6

7.1

7.27.1

7.7 7.6

7.2

7.4

8.0

8.1
7.9

7.9 7.9

8.1

8.5 7.8

7.7

7.98.0
7.6

7.9 7.8
7.6
7.6
7.8 7.9

7.8

7.3

9.7

9.6

9.4

9.59.5

9.5
8.17.7

9.
3

9.3

4.04.04.0

7.6

9.3

9.
3

7.67.8

9.
2

9.1
7.6

4.04.0

7.5
9.3

9.
3

7.98.0 9.6 9.4
7.4
4.0

7.4

7.5
7.98.48.79.0

9.
6

9.4

7.6

4.0

9.
5

9.3
7.5
4.04.0

8.0
9.4

9.
4

9.5
9.6

8.0

4.0 4.
04.07.79.6

9.8

10
.0

7.9
7.68.0

8.48.6

8.5

8.6
8.7

9.38.68.9
7

8.9
9

9.0
1

8.58.86.
56.51

0.1

9.8 6.5 6.4 8.7 9.0 9.0
8

8.9
9

8.9
6

8.5 9.3

9.69.08.9
6

9.0
4

9.1
5
9.08.66.36.49.3

9.5 6.4 6.2 8.3 8.4 9.0
8

9.0
3

9.0
4

8.8

9.5 8.9 8.3

9.29.49.6

9.2 9.5

9.5

9.4

9.0

8.7

8.3

8.2

7.
35

15
" R

CP
7.

50
15

" R
CP

9.2 9.4

9.8

9.5

9.2

8.7

8.5

8.1

8.2

8.5 8.7

9.1

9.5
9.7

9.3

8.9

8.4

8.2

8.1

7.
51

ST
R"

 R
CP

7.
51

15
" R

CP 10
.3

10
.4

10
.3

10
.5

10
.7

10
.4

10
.2

10
.2

8.1

9.9 10
.1

9.8

9.8

9.8
9.6

9.49.29.3 8.2 8.2
8.1 9.4

9.9 9.9
9.3
9.18.8

9.1

10
.2

10
.1 9.8

9.89.8

10
.2

9.2 9.2

8.9

8.88.6

8.8

9.1 9.3
9.3

9.69.5

9.2 10
.3

9.8

9.5
9.7
9.3

8.7

8.6

9.1 9.3

9.0

9.1

9.1

9.3

9.1

9.6
10

.2

7.
45

15
" R

CP
7.

46
15

" R
CP

9.09.0

8.8 9.0 9.0
8.9

8.5

8.7 9.0 8.9 8.6

8.4

8.2
8.18.28.

08.
2 8.0 8.2

8.7
8

8.6 6.2 9.7

py
lo

n 
CA

BL
E 

PH
O

N
E

9.76.58.58.7
4

8.7
4

8.6 6.1 9.7

9.76.38.78.8
7

8.7
7

8.5 6.3 9.4

8.8
1

8.6 6.5 9.5

9.76.48.
78.8

1

8.9
1

8.8 6.4 10
.0

8.7
6

8.3 6.3 10
.0

8.7
0

8.5 6.2 9.8
8.5

2

8.2 6.2 9.9
6.

49
18

" C
M

P

6.56.
51

18
" C

M
P

8.4
6

8.3 6.2 9.7

10
.06.28.38.5

8

8.7
7

8.4 6.2 9.9

py
lo

n 
CA

BL
E 

PH
O

N
E

9.96.48.48.6
1

8.6
4

8.2 6.2 9.6

9.96.48.
28.5

4

8.5
8

8.3 6.4 9.7

9.66.28.38.5
2

8.3
8

8.0 6.0 9.8

9.76.58.38.3
8

9.86.18.38.3
3

8.1
5

8.0 6.2 9.8

py
lo

n 
CA

BL
E 

PH
O

N
E

9.56.17.98.1
1

8.1
6

7.9 5.6 9.5

9.65.97.98.0
1

py
lo

n 
ST

AN
D 

SO
FT

 D
IG

?

7.9
2

7.6 6.0 9.3

9.16.07.77.9
5

py
lo

n 
CA

BL
E

py
lo

n 
CA

BL
E

5.
39

18
" R

CP

5.
40

18
" R

CP

8.0
0

7.7 5.8 7.3

P
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

 /
 C

O
N

S
E

R
V

A
TI

O
N

 A
R

E
A

 -
 2

4.
20

 A
C

,
O

.R
. 5

59
5,

 P
G

. 2
63

S
U

B
-B

A
S

IN
 #

2
29

.6
3 

A
C

S
U

B
-B

A
S

IN
 #

5
 2

4.
93

 A
C

S
U

B
-B

A
S

IN
 #

1
 2

5.
07

 A
C

S
U

B
-B

A
S

IN
 #

3
12

.9
9 

A
C

S
U

B
-B

A
S

IN
 #

4
10

.8
8 

A
C

P
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

 /
 C

O
N

S
E

R
V

A
TI

O
N

 A
R

E
A

 -
 2

4.
20

 A
C

,
O

.R
. 5

59
5,

 P
G

. 2
63

PR
O

PE
RT

Y
BO

UN
DA

RY

PR
O

PE
RT

Y
BO

UN
DA

RY

LI
TT

O
RA

L 
PL

AN
TI

N
G

AR
EA

 (T
YP

.)

6'
 M

IN
 C

HA
IN

LI
N

K 
FE

N
CE

/
W

AL
L 

AD
JA

CE
N

T 
TO

 L
AK

E

6'
 M

IN
 C

HA
IN

LI
N

K 
FE

N
CE

/
W

AL
L 

AD
JA

CE
N

T 
TO

 L
AK

E

6'
 M

IN
 C

HA
IN

LI
N

K 
FE

N
CE

/
W

AL
L 

AD
JA

CE
N

T 
TO

 L
AK

E

DR
Y 

DE
TE

N
TI

O
N

DR
Y 

DE
TE

N
TI

O
N

AM
IT

Y 
RO

AD
 D

RA
IN

AG
E 

AR
EA

PE
RM

IM
ET

ER
 B

ER
M

M
IN

. E
LE

V.
 =

 9
.4

7 
(T

YP
.)

PE
RM

IM
ET

ER
 B

ER
M

M
IN

. E
LE

V.
 =

 9
.4

7 
(T

YP
.)

PE
RM

IM
ET

ER
 B

ER
M

M
IN

. E
LE

V.
 =

 9
.4

7 
(T

YP
.)

R
E

C
R

E
A

TI
O

N
A

L
C

E
N

TE
R

 1 2 3 4 5 6

 7

 8

 1
1

 1
0

 9

 1
3

 1
4

 1
5

 1
6

 1
7

 1
8

 1
9 2

0

 2
1

 2
4

 4
0

 4
1

 4
2

 4
3

 4
4

 4
5  4
6

 5
4 5

5

 5
6

 5
7 5
8

 5
9 6
0

 1
35 1

34 1
33

 1
30

 1
29

 1
28

 1
27

 1
74

 1
75

 1
76  1
77  1
78  1
79

 1
80

 9
7

 9
6

 9
5

 9
4

 9
3

 9
2

 9
1

 8
8  8
7

 8
6

 8
5  8
4

 8
3  8
1

 8
0  7

9

 2
40

 2
41

 2
42  2
43

 2
44

 2
45  2
46  2
47  2
48

 1
03

 1
04

 1
05

 1
06

 1
07

 2
32

 2
31

 2
30

 2
29

 2
28

 2
27

 2
26

 2
39

 2
38

 2
37

 2
36

 2
35

 2
34

 2
33

 2
19

 2
18

 2
17

 2
16

 2
15

 2
13

 2
14

 2
12

 2
11

 1
10

 2
09

 2
08

 2
07

 2
06

 2
05

 2
04

 2
02

 2
01

 2
00

 1
99

 1
98

 1
94

 1
93

 1
92

 1
91

 1
90

 1
88

 1
87

 1
86

 1
85

 1
84

 1
83

 1
82

 9
8

 9
9

 1
00

 1
01

 1
02

 1
08

 1
09

 1
10

 1
11

 1
12

 1
13

 1
14

 1
15

 1
16

 1
17

 1
18

 1
19

 1
20

 1
21

 1
22

 1
23

 1
24

 1
25

 1
26

 1
73

 1
72

 1
71

 1
67

 1
37

 1
38

 1
39

 1
40

 1
41

 1
42

 1
43  7

4
 7

3
 7

2
 7

1
 7

0
 6

9
 6

8
 6

7

 3
4

 3
3

 3
2

 3
1

 3
0

 2
9

 3
6

 3
7

 3
8

 5
3

 5
2

 5
1

 5
0

 4
9 4

8

 4
7

 2
20  2
21

 2
22  2
23

 2
24

 2
25

 1
81

 1
44

 1
45

 1
46

 1
47

 1
48

 1
49 1
50 1
51

 1
52

 1
53

 1
55 1
56

 1
57

 1
58

 1
59

 1
60 1
61

 1
62

 1
63

 1
64

 1
65

 1
66

 1 2 3 4 5 6

 7

 8

 1
0

 9

 1
2

 1
3

 1
4

 1
5

 1
6

 1
7

 1
8

 1
9 2

0

 2
1

 2
2

 2
3

 2
4

 3
9

 4
1

 4
2

 4
3

 4
4

 4
5  4
6

 5
4 5

5

 5
6

 5
7 5
8

 5
9 6
0

 6
1

 1
35 1

34 1
33

 1
32

 1
31

 1
30

 1
29

 1
28

 1
27

 1
74

 1
75

 1
76  1
77  1
78  1
79

 1
80

 1
36

 9
7

 9
6

 9
5

 9
4

 9
3

 9
2

 9
1

 9
0

 8
9

 8
8  8
7

 8
6

 8
5  8
3  8
2  8
1

 8
0  7

9

 2
40

 2
42  2
43

 2
44

 2
45  2
46  2
47  2
48

 1
03

 1
04

 1
05

 1
06

 1
07

 2
32

 2
31

 2
30

 2
29

 2
28

 2
27

 2
26

 2
39

 2
38

 2
37

 2
36

 2
35

 2
34

 2
33

 2
49

 2
50

 2
51

 2
19

 2
18

 2
17

 2
16

 2
15

 2
13

 2
14

 2
12

 2
11

 1
10

 2
09

 2
08

 2
07

 2
06

 2
05

 2
04

 2
03

 2
02

 2
01

 2
00

 1
99

 1
98

 1
97

 1
96

 1
95

 1
94

 1
93

 1
92

 1
91

 1
90

 1
89

 1
88

 1
87

 1
86

 1
85

 1
84

 1
83

 1
82

 9
8

 9
9

 1
00

 1
01

 1
02

 1
08

 1
09

 1
10

 1
16

 1
17

 1
18

 1
23

 1
24

 1
25

 1
26

 1
73

 1
72

 1
71

 1
70

 1
69

 1
68

 1
67

 1
37

 1
38

 1
39

 1
40

 1
41

 1
42

 1
43

 7
8

 7
7

 7
6

 7
5

 7
4

 7
3

 7
2

 7
1

 7
0

 6
9

 6
8

 6
7

 6
6

 6
5

 6
4

 6
3

 6
2

 2
8

 2
7

 2
6

 2
5

 3
4

 3
3

 3
2

 3
1

 3
0

 2
9

 3
5

 3
6

 3
7

 3
8

 5
3

 5
2

 5
1

 5
0

 4
9 4

8

 4
7

 2
20  2
21

 2
22  2
23

 2
24

 2
25

 1
81

 1
44

 1
45

 1
46

 1
47

 1
48

 1
49 1
50 1
51

 1
52

 1
53

 1
54

 1
56

 1
57

 1
58

 1
59

 1
60 1
61

 1
62

 1
63

 1
64

 1
65

 1
66

8.
90

10
.0

3

8.
90

9.
60

9.
40

9.
57

9.
89

9.
29

9.
91

10
.3

9

10
.0

3

8.
90

8.
90

9.
99

8.
90

9.
55

9.
42

9.
62

9.
578.
90

9.
60

8.
90

9.
50

8.
909.

62

8.
90

9.
91

9.
95

8.
90

10
.1

9

8.
909.

89

10
.4

1

10
.6

1
8.

90
9.

96
8.

90

8.
90

9.
72

10
.1

9

9.
99

10
.6

1

8.
90

9.
66

9.
42 9.

62
8.

90

9.
99

9.
77

8.
90

9.
53

8.
90

9.
62 8.
90

9.
49

8.
90

9.
62

8.
90

10
.0

5

8.
95

9.
57

FI
R

E
 D

IS
TR

IC
T

P
A

R
C

E
L 

1.
3

A
C

R
E

S

RED BIRD LANE

COLLIER BOULEVARD (CR951)

SA
BA

L 
PA

LM
 R

O
AD

AM
IT

Y 
RO

AD

JO
H

N
S 

RO
AD

KA
M

AR
I C

O
VE

PO
LI

H
AL

E 
W

AY

GR
AC

E 
BA

Y 
LN

N
IS

SI
 C

T

SPIAGGIO CT

DEAUVILLE LOOP

GRACE BAY LN

TAMARINDO LANE

TI
M

E 
O

F 
CO

N
CE

N
TR

AT
IO

N
 P

AT
H

A
M

IT
Y

 E
A

S
T

S
U

B
-B

A
S

IN
4.

77
 A

C
A

M
IT

Y
 W

E
S

T
S

U
B

-B
A

S
IN

8.
82

 A
C

LAKE #3
1.43 AC.

LA
K

E
 #

2
3.

16
 A

C. LA
K

E
 #

1
2.

71
 A

C.

LA
K

E
 #

4
1.

93
 A

C.

Fe
et

0
15

0
30

0

TI
TL

E:

CL
IE

N
T:

PR
O

JE
CT

:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:
FI

LE
 N

AM
E:TA

M
AR

IN
DO

D.
R.

 H
O

RT
O

N
, I

N
C.

12
00

30
.0

5.
00

01
 1

20
03

00
50

0 
EX

02

PO
ST

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
DR

AI
N

AG
E 

EX
HI

BI
T

49
83

 R
oy

al
 G

ul
f C

irc
le

 F
or

t M
ye

rs
, F

lo
rid

a 
33

96
6

 (2
39

) 5
97

-0
57

5 
 F

AX
: (

23
9)

 5
97

-0
57

8
w

w
w

.co
ns

ul
t-

rw
a.

co
m

Fl
or

id
a 

Ce
rti

fic
at

es
 o

f A
ut

ho
riz

at
io

n
EB

 7
66

3 
   

LB
69

52

C
E

5.
7

C
E

6.
7

C
E

5.
7

C
E

6.
7

C
E

6.
7

C
S

N
ew

O
ut

fa
ll

Ke
ep

Ex
is

tin
g

C
S

6.
2

C
FS

Pu
m

p
8

cf
s

C
S

Page 13



ATTACHMENT II

Proposed Tamarindo CDD Discharge Point – Alternative I
Submitted to SFWMD on February 5, 2025

Page 14



PR
O

PE
RT

Y
BO

UN
DA

RY

LAKE #3
1.43 AC.

A
LL

A
M

A
N

D
A

E
S

TA
TE

S
1.

3 
A

C
R

E
S

RED BIRD LANE

COLLIER BOULEVARD (CR951)

SA
BA

L 
PA

LM
 R

O
AD

AM
IT

Y 
RO

AD

JO
H

N
S 

RO
AD

LA
K

E
 #

2
3.

30
 A

C. LA
K

E
 #

1
2.

84
 A

C.

LA
K

E
 #

4
1.

93
 A

C.

PR
O

PE
RT

Y
BO

UN
DA

RY

8.
90

10
.0

3

8.
90

9.
60

9.
40

9.
57

9.
89

9.
29

9.
91

10
.3

9

10
.0

3

8.
90

ST
R.

 #
2-

18

ST
R.

#4
-2

4

ST
R.

 #
1-

9

ST
R.

 #
2-

16

ST
R.

#4
-1

7

ST
R.

 #
1-

11

ST
R.

 #
1-

26

ST
R.

 #
2-

36

ST
R.

 #
1-

27

ST
R.

 #
2-

20

ST
R.

 #
2-

35

ST
R.

 #
2-

12

ST
R.

 #
3-

2

ST
R.

 #
2-

13

ST
R.

 #
2-

50

ST
R.

 #
2-

19

ST
R.

 #
2-

26

ST
R.

 #
2-

51

ST
R.

 #
1-

31

ST
R.

 #
3-

1

ST
R.

 #
1-

30

ST
R.

#4
-1

ST
R.

 #
3-

27

ST
R.

 #
2-

27

ST
R.

 #
2-

42

ST
R.

 #
3-

19

ST
R.

#3
-2

0

ST
R.

 #
2-

25

ST
R.

 #
2-

24

ST
R.

 #
2-

43

ST
R.

 #
1-

13

ST
R.

 #
1-

12

ST
R.

#4
-1

6

ST
R.

#4
-1

5

ST
R.

 #
1-

19

ST
R.

 #
1-

18

ST
R.

 #
1-

23

ST
R.

#1
-2

4

ST
R.

 #
1-

38

ST
R.

 #
1-

39

ST
R.

 #
4-

8
ST

R.
 #

4-
9

ST
R.

 #
4-

22

ST
R.

 #
4-

21

ST
R.

 #
2-

37

ST
R.

#1
-4

0

ST
R.

 #
2-

38

ST
R.

 #
3-

23
ST

R.
 #

3-
17

ST
R.

#1
-1

4

ST
R.

 #
1-

17

ST
R.

 #
1-

20

ST
R.

 #
1-

22

ST
R.

 #
2-

49

ST
R.

#2
-5

2

ST
R.

 #
1-

33

ST
R.

 #
2-

11

ST
R.

 #
2-

14

ST
R.

 #
3-

3

ST
R.

 #
2-

23

ST
R.

 #
2-

28

ST
R.

 #
2-

41

ST
R.

 #
2-

44

ST
R.

#2
-3

0

ST
R.

 #
2-

10

ST
R.

 #
2-

31

ST
R.

 #
2-

40
ST

R.
 #

2-
33

ST
R.

 #
2-

39

ST
R.

 #
1-

15

ST
R.

 #
2-

29

ST
R.

 #
1-

25

ST
R.

 #
1-

28

ST
R.

 #
1-

29

ST
R.

 #
2-

22

ST
R.

 #
2-

21

ST
R.

 #
2-

45

ST
R.

 #
2-

46

ST
R.

 #
1-

10

ST
R.

 #
1-

16

ST
R.

 #
3-

25
ST

R.
 #

3-
28

ST
R.

 #
4-

3

ST
R.

 #
4-

6

ST
R.

 #
4-

7

ST
R.

 #
4-

10

ST
R.

 #
4-

11

ST
R.

 #
4-

14

ST
R.

 #
3-

24

ST
R.

 #
3-

29

ST
R.

#2
-5

ST
R.

 #
2-

15

ST
R.

 #
2-

9A

ST
R.

 #
2-

4

ST
R.

#3
-2

6

ST
R.

 #
2-

47

ST
R.

 #
1-

21

ST
R.

 #
4-

4

ST
R.

#3
-1

8

ST
R.

 #
4-

13

ST
R.

 #
4-

26

ST
R.

 #
4-

25
CS

#1

ST
R.

 #
4-

27

ST
R.

 #
1-

4

ST
R.

 #
1-

1

ST
R.

 #
1-

2

ST
R.

 #
1-

3

ST
R.

 #
1-

6

ST
R.

 #
1-

5

ST
R.

#1
-8

ST
R.

 #
1-

7

ST
R.

 #
1-

35

ST
R.

 #
1-

36

ST
R.

 #
1-

34

ST
R.

 #
2-

1

ST
R.

 #
2-

2

ST
R.

 #
2-

3

ST
R.

 #
1-

32

ST
R.

 #
3-

10

ST
R.

 #
3-

8

ST
R.

 #
3-

9

ST
R.

 #
3-

7

ST
R.

 #
3-

11
ST

R.
 #

3-
12

ST
R.

 #
2-

17

ST
R.

 #
3-

6
15

" M
ES

IN
V.

E
= 

7.
50

ST
R.

 #
3-

5
15

" M
ES

IN
V.

 W
 =

 7
.3

5

ST
R.

 #
3-

13

ST
R.

 #
3-

14

ST
R.

 #
3-

15
15

" M
ES

IN
V.

 W
 =

 6
.4

0

ST
R.

#3
-1

6
15

"M
ES

IN
V.

 E
=

6.
40

ST
R.

 #
2-

32
ST

R.
 #

2-
34

ST
R.

 #
4-

18

ST
R.

 #
4-

20

ST
R.

 #
4-

23

ST
R.

 #
4-

12

ST
R.

 #
3-

22

ST
R.

 #
2-

48

ST
R.

 #
4-

2
ST

R.
 #

4-
5

15
" R

CP

15
" R

CP
18

"R
CP

15
" R

CP

15
" R

CP

18
" R

CP

36
" R

CP 36
" R

CP

30
" R

CP

30
" R

CP

30
" R

CP

30
" R

CP
30

"R
CP

24
"R

CP

18
" R

CP
36

" R
CP

36
" R

CP

36
" R

CP
36

" R
CP

36
" R

CP

36
" R

CP

36
" R

CP

36
" R

CP

15
" R

CP

18
" R

CP

24
"R

CP
24

" R
CP

36
" R

CP

36
" R

CP

36
" R

CP

15
" R

CP

18
" R

CP

18
" R

CP

24
" R

CP

15
" R

CP

18
" R

CP

18
" R

CP
24

" R
CP

24
"R

CP

15
" R

CP

18
"R

CP
24

" R
CP

24
" R

CP

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E10

" H
DP

E

30
" R

CP

30
" R

CP
30

"R
CP

30
" R

CP

30
" R

CP

30
" R

CP 30
" R

CP
15

"R
CP

24
" R

CP

18
" R

CP

24
" R

CP
24

" R
CP

15
" R

CP

18
" R

CP

30
" R

CP

30
" R

CP

30
" R

CP

30
" R

CP

36
" R

CP

10
"H

DP
E

36
"R

CP

18
" R

CP

15
"R

CP

30
" R

CP

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

30
" R

CP

10
" H

DP
E

24
" R

CP

24
" R

CP

15
"R

CP

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

15
" R

CP

18
"R

CP

24
"R

CP

24
" R

CP

30
" R

CP30
" R

CP

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

24
" R

CP

36
" R

CP

15
" R

CP

12
" H

DP
E

15
" R

CP

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

40
LF

15
" R

CP
@

 0
.3

8%
 S

LO
PE

15
" R

CP

36
 L

F
15

" R
CP

@
 0

.0
0%

SL
O

PE

10
" H

DP
E

15
" R

CP

10
" H

DP
E

15
" R

CP

24
" R

CP

KA
M

AR
I

CO
VE

PO
LI

H
AL

E 
W

AY

GR
AC

E 
BA

Y
LN

N
IS

SI
 C

T

SPIAGGIO CTD
EA

U
VI

LL
E

LO
O

P

TAMARINDO LANE

GRACE BAY LN

A
M

E
N

IT
Y

C
E

N
TE

R

 1 2 3 4 5 6

 7

 8

 1
1

 1
0

 9

 1
2

 1
3

 1
4

 1
5

 1
6

 1
7

 1
8

 1
9 2

0

 2
1

 2
2 2
3

 2
4

 3
9

 4
0

 4
1

 4
2

 4
3

 4
4

 4
5  4
6

 5
4 5

5

 5
6

 5
7 5
8

 5
9 6
0

 6
1

 1
35 1

34 1
33

 1
32

 1
31

 1
30

 1
29

 1
28

 1
27

 1
74

 1
75

 1
76  1
77  1
78  1
79

 1
80

 1
36

 9
7

 9
6

 9
5

 9
4

 9
3

 9
2

 9
1

 8
9

 8
8  8
7

 8
6

 8
5  8
4

 8
3

 8
2  8
1

 8
0  7

9

 2
40

 2
41

 2
42  2
43

 2
44

 2
45  2
46  2
47  2
48

 1
03

 1
04

 1
05

 1
06

 1
07

 2
32

 2
31

 2
30

 2
29

 2
28

 2
27

 2
26

 2
39

 2
38

 2
37

 2
36

 2
35

 2
34

 2
33

 2
49

 2
50

 2
51

 2
19

 2
18

 2
17

 2
16

 2
15

 2
13

 2
14

 2
12

 2
11

 1
10

 2
09

 2
08

 2
07

 2
06

 2
05

 2
04

 2
03

 2
02

 2
01

 2
00

 1
99

 1
98

 1
97

 1
96

 1
95

 1
94

 1
93

 1
92

 1
91

 1
90

 1
89

 1
88

 1
87

 1
86

 1
85

 1
84

 1
83

 1
82

 9
8

 9
9

 1
00

 1
01

 1
02

 1
08

 1
09

 1
10

 1
11

 1
12

 1
13

 1
14

 1
15

 1
16

 1
17

 1
18

 1
19

 1
20

 1
21

 1
22

 1
23

 1
24

 1
25

 1
26

 1
73

 1
72

 1
71

 1
70

 1
69

 1
68

 1
67

 1
37

 1
38

 1
39

 1
40

 1
41

 1
42

 1
43

 7
8

 7
7

 7
6

 7
5

 7
4

 7
3

 7
2

 7
1

 7
0

 6
9

 6
8

 6
7

 6
4

 6
3

 6
2

 2
8

 2
7

 2
6

 2
5

 3
4

 3
3

 3
2

 3
1

 3
0

 2
9

 3
5

 3
6

 3
7

 3
8

 5
3

 5
2

 5
1

 5
0

 4
9 4

8

 4
7

 2
20  2
21

 2
22  2
23

 2
24

 2
25

 1
81

 1
44

 1
45

 1
46

 1
47

 1
48

 1
49 1
50 1
51

 1
52

 1
53

 1
54

 1
55 1
56

 1
57

 1
58

 1
59

 1
60 1
61

 1
62

 1
63

 1
64

 1
65

 1
66

ST
R.

 #
2-

7
ST

R.
 #

2-
6

ST
R.

 #
2-

8

30
" R

CP

30
" R

CP

24
" R

CP
24

" R
CP

24
" R

CP

10
" H

DP
E

15
" R

CP

ST
R.

 #
4-

19

P
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

 /
 C

O
N

S
E

R
V

A
TI

O
N

 A
R

E
A

 -
 2

4.
20

 A
C

,
O

.R
. 5

59
5,

 P
G

. 2
63

8.
90

9.
99

8.
90

9.
55

9.
42

9.
62

9.
578.
90

9.
60

8.
90

9.
27

8.
909.
62

8.
90

9.
91

9.
95

8.
90

10
.1

9

8.
909.

89

10
.4

1

10
.6

1
8.

90
9.

96
8.

90

8.
90

9.
72

10
.1

9

9.
99

10
.6

1

8.
90

9.
66

9.
42 9.

62
8.

90

9.
99

9.
77

8.
90

9.
53

8.
90

9.
62 8.
90

9.
49

8.
90

9.
62

8.
90

10
.0

5

8.
95

9.
57

ST
R.

 #
1-

3730
" R

CP

30
" R

CP

ST
R.

 #
SP

-3
15

" R
CP

15
" R

CP

ST
R.

 #
SP

-1

ST
R.

 #
SP

-2

LI
TT

O
RA

L 
PL

AN
TI

N
G

AR
EA

 (T
YP

.)

6'
 M

IN
 C

HA
IN

LI
N

K 
FE

N
CE

/
W

AL
L 

AD
JA

CE
N

T 
TO

 L
AK

E

6'
 M

IN
 C

HA
IN

LI
N

K 
FE

N
CE

/
W

AL
L 

AD
JA

CE
N

T 
TO

 L
AK

E

10
" H

DP
E ST

R.
 #

3-
21

6'
 M

IN
 C

HA
IN

LI
N

K 
FE

N
CE

/
W

AL
L 

AD
JA

CE
N

T 
TO

 L
AK

E

DR
Y 

DE
TE

N
TI

O
N

DR
Y 

DE
TE

N
TI

O
N

AM
IT

Y 
RO

AD
 D

RA
IN

AG
E 

AR
EA A

M
IT

Y
 W

E
S

T
8.

82
 A

C
.

A
M

IT
Y

 E
A

S
T

4.
77

 A
C

.

PE
RM

IM
ET

ER
 B

ER
M

M
IN

. E
LE

V.
 =

 9
.5

1
(S

UB
-B

AS
IN

 1
 T

YP
.)

PE
RM

IM
ET

ER
 B

ER
M

M
IN

. E
LE

V.
 =

 9
.5

0 
(T

YP
.)

PE
RM

IM
ET

ER
 B

ER
M

M
IN

. E
LE

V.
 =

 9
.5

0 
(T

YP
.)

S
U

B
-B

A
S

IN
 #

2
28

.5
8 

AC
.

S
U

B
-B

A
S

IN
 #

5
24

.9
3 

AC
.

S
U

B
-B

A
S

IN
 #

1
26

.1
2 

AC
.

S
U

B
-B

A
S

IN
 #

3
9.

77
 A

C.

S
U

B
-B

Z
E

 A
S

IN
 #

4
14

.1
0 

AC
.

ST
R.

 #
CS

 L
-3

W
AT

ER
 Q

UA
LI

TY
 F

IL
TE

R
CO

N
TE

CH
 JF

PD
08

08
(S

EE
 A

TT
AC

HM
EN

T)

ST
R.

 #
1-

47
18

" R
CP

ST
R.

 #
1-

46

18
" R

CP

18
" H

DP
E

15
" R

CP

15
" R

CP

10
"H

DP
E18

" H
DP

E

ST
R.

 #
1-

41
ST

R.
 #

1-
43

ST
R.

 #
1-

42

ST
R.

 #
1-

44

EX
. S

TR
. #

JB
-0

1

EX
. S

TR
. #

VG
-1

EX
. S

TR
. #

VG
-2

EX
. S

TR
. #

M
ES

-2

EX
. S

TR
. #

M
ES

-1

EX
. 1

5"
 R

CP

EX
. 1

5"
 R

CP
EX

. 1
5"

 R
CP

O
UT

FA
LL

 S
TR

UC
TU

RE
(A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
E 

1)

VE
RO

N
AW

AL
K

14
" P

VC
O

UT
FA

LL
 S

TR
UC

TU
RE

(A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

E 
2)

14
" P

VC

14
" P

VC

HO
RI

Z.
 S

CA
LE

 (F
UL

L)
:

DA
TE

CH
EC

KE
D

DR
AW

N

RG
E:

TW
P:

SE
C:

DA
TE

:

TI
TL

E:

CL
IE

N
T:

PR
O

JE
CT

:

O
F

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:
SH

EE
T 

N
UM

BE
R:

RE
VI

SI
O

N
RE

V 
#

HO
RI

Z.
 S

CA
LE

 (H
AL

F)
:

DE
SI

GN
ED

:

DR
AW

N
:

VE
RT

. S
CA

LE
 (F

UL
L)

:

VE
RT

. S
CA

LE
 (H

AL
F)

:
FI

LE
 N

AM
E:

FL
O

RI
DA

 L
IC

EN
SE

 N
O

.

TA
M

AR
IN

DO
FO

RE
ST

AR

6
37

12
00

30
.0

2.
01

JA
N

.,2
02

0

1"
 =

 2
00

'

1"
 =

 4
00

'

23
50

S
26

E

KM
W

DL
P

N
/A

N
/A

06
 1

20
03

00
20

1C
 D

P0
1 

- V
W

 E
XE

C 
SU

M
47

05
9

CH
RI

ST
O

PH
ER

 O
. W

RI
GH

T,
 P

.E
.

Fe
et

0
20

0
40

0

66
10

 W
ill

ow
 P

ar
k 

Dr
iv

e,
 S

ui
te

 2
00

N
ap

le
s, 

Fl
or

id
a 

34
10

9
(2

39
)5

97
-0

57
5 

 F
AX

: (
23

9)
 5

97
-0

57
8

w
w

w
.co

ns
ul

t-
rw

a.
co

m
Fl

or
id

a 
Ce

rti
fic

at
es

 o
f A

ut
ho

riz
at

io
n

EB
 7

66
3 

   
LB

69
52

W
A

TE
R

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
DE

SC
RI

PT
IO

N
SU

B-
BA

SI
N

 1
SU

B-
BA

SI
N

 2
SU

B-
BA

SI
N

 3
SU

B-
BA

SI
N

 4
CO

N
TR

O
L 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
6.

71
 N

AV
D

6.
71

 N
AV

D
5.

71
 N

AV
D

5.
71

 N
AV

D

25
 Y

EA
R 

3 
DA

Y 
PE

AK
ST

AG
E

9.
04

 N
AV

D
8.

92
 N

AV
D

8.
73

 N
AV

D
8.

68
 N

AV
D

25
 Y

EA
R 

3 
DA

Y
RA

IN
FA

LL
11

.5
0 

IN
.

11
.5

0 
IN

.
11

.5
0 

IN
.

11
.5

0 
IN

.

10
0 

YE
AR

 3
 D

AY
 P

EA
K

ST
AG

E
9.

51
 N

AV
D

9.
39

 N
AV

D
9.

23
 N

AV
D

9.
08

 N
AV

D

10
0 

YE
AR

 3
 D

AY
RA

IN
FA

LL
15

.0
0 

IN
.

15
.0

0 
IN

.
15

.0
0 

IN
.

15
.0

0 
IN

.

M
IN

. P
RO

P 
RO

AD
CR

O
W

N
9.

04
 N

AV
D

8.
92

 N
AV

D
8.

90
 N

AV
D

8.
90

 N
AV

D

M
IN

. P
RO

P 
BE

RM
9.

51
 N

AV
D

9.
50

 N
AV

D
9.

50
 N

AV
D

9.
50

 N
AV

D

FE
M

A 
BF

E
8.

5-
10

 N
AV

D

BF
E 

+1
*

9.
5-

11
.0

 N
AV

D

M
IN

. P
RO

P 
FI

N
IS

HE
D

FL
O

O
R

10
.6

-1
1 

N
AV

D

25
 Y

EA
R 

3 
DA

Y
PR

E-
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T
DI

SC
HA

RG
E

38
.3

8 
CF

S

25
 Y

EA
R 

3 
DA

Y
PO

ST
-D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

DI
SC

HA
RG

E
11

.7
2 

CF
S

ST
O

RM
 S

EW
ER

ST
O

RM
 IN

LE
T/

JU
N

CT
IO

N
 B

O
X

ST
O

RM
 F

LA
RE

D 
EN

D

D
-X

PR
O

PO
SE

D
EX

IS
TI

N
G

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

LA
KE

 A
RE

A

PR
ES

ER
VE

 A
RE

A

PO
IN

T 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

12
.5

0

12
.50

N
/A

N
/A

CO
M

M
O

N
 A

RE
A 

SI
DE

W
AL

K

AR
CH

AE
O

LO
GI

CA
L 

SI
TE

N
/A

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
S 

BA
SE

D 
O

N
 N

O
RT

H 
AM

ER
IC

AN
VE

RT
IC

AL
 D

AT
UM

 N
AV

D8
8.

 C
O

N
VE

RS
IO

N
 F

RO
M

N
AV

D8
8 

TO
 N

GV
D2

9:
 N

AV
D8

8 
+1

.2
9=

N
GV

D2
9.

LI
TT

O
RA

L 
PL

AN
TI

N
G 

AR
EA

N
/A

N
O

TE
:

PR
O

HI
BI

TE
D 

EX
O

TI
CS

 A
N

D 
N

UI
SA

N
CE

 S
PE

CI
ES

 S
HA

LL
 B

E
RE

M
O

VE
D 

IN
 P

ER
PE

TU
IT

Y 
AN

D 
CA

TT
AI

LS
 S

HA
LL

 N
O

T 
EX

CE
ED

10
%

 C
O

VE
RA

GE
 O

F 
TH

E 
LS

PA
.

*C
O

LL
IE

R 
M

IN
. R

EQ
UI

RE
M

EN
T

M
AJ

O
R 

BA
SI

N
 L

IN
E

M
IN

O
R 

SU
B-

BA
SI

N
 L

IN
E

PR
O

JE
CT

 B
O

UN
DA

RY
 L

IN
E 

(1
9.

71
 A

C.
)

Page 15



ATTACHMENT III

SFWMD RAI Dated March 7, 2025

Page 16



* Delivered Via Email
March 7, 2025 
                                                                                    
Anthony Squitieri *
Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc 
4042 Park Oaks Boulevard Suite 200
Tampa, FL 33610 

Subject:    Tamarindo
                  Request for Additional Information
                  Application No. 240916-45732 
                  Collier County

Dear Mr. Squitieri,

Effective June 28, 2024, Chapter 62-330, FAC and ERP AH Vols. I & II were amended to
include new water quality performance standards and supporting calculations specified in Section
8.0, Criteria for Evaluation, and Section 9.0, Stormwater Quality Treatment Evaluations, ERP AH
Vol. I, respectively. In addition, there are amendments to the requirements of Section 12.0,
Operation and Maintenance Requirements and Section 3.1.2, “Grandfathering Activities”, ERP AH
Vol. I.

All project applications are subject to the amended rules, as follows:  

Unless specifically “grandfathered” per Section 3.1.2, ERP AH Vol. I (effective date 06/28/24),
all project applications are subject to the new rules effective 06/28/24.

Section 3.1.2.(e)4, ERP AH Vol. I, specific to the amended stormwater criteria in Sections 8.0
and 9.0, provides a “grandfathering” provision for general or individual permit applications.
These applications must be deemed complete, on or before December 28, 2025, to be
exempt from Sections 8.0 & 9.0, ERP AH Vol. I and the ERP AH Vol. II, effective 06/28/24.

There is no specific “grandfathering” provision for new conceptual approval applications.
These applications must meet all the provisions stipulated in the amended rules, unless the
project qualifies for the “grandfathering” provisions outlined in Sections 3.1.2.(e)1 – 3
& (f)-(i), (effective date 06/28/24).

As discussed with Mike Pappas, P.E. on March 7, 2024, the District is requesting the following
information, in accordance with Section 5.0 or 7.0, as applicable, Environmental Resource Permit
(ERP) Applicant's Handbook (AH) Volume (Vol.) I, adopted by reference in Subsection
62.330.010(4)(a), Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), to complete the application and provide
reasonable assurances for permit issuance:

We are in receipt of $1,200. However, the required permit processing fee for an Individual
permit modification is $7,875. Please submit a check for the outstanding $6,675 balance in
order to allow processing of this application to continue. Payment of application fees can be
done by credit card on the District's ePermitting website, or by check. If submitted by check,

1.

Page 17



please make the check payable to the South Florida Water Management District and please
reference Application No. 240916-45732 in the memo section of the check to ensure
adequate processing. [Rule 62-330.071, F.A.C.]

It appears that new work is proposed within areas which are owned and/or controlled by
Collier County Board of County Commissioners and Hacienda Lakes of Naples LLC,
specifically for a Diversion Pipeline. Does the applicant have easements allowing for the
proposed work? Please provide copies of all relevant easements. Depending on the above
responses, it may be appropriate to have the property owner as co-applicant(s). Please
provide details of any coordination which has occurred with the land owner(s) to date. Would
these entities be willing to be co-applicants? Please explain. [Section 4.2.3, Vol. I]

2.

Based on the revised plans submitted, the proposed stormwater management system will
discharge into the existing stormwater management system and conservation easement
located on property owned by Hacienda Lakes of Naples LLC. Please provide copies of
relevant easements that allow for this. [Sections 62-330.301, F.A.C. and 4.2.3, Vol. I]

3.

Please document through the use of groundwater/surface water modeling or other methods
that the proposed discharge to the wetland area will have a sufficient (but not excessive)
hydroperiod. The results of the modeling or other calculations should be incorporated into an
estimated annual water budget for the receiving wetland area(s). [Section C, Form
62-330.060(1), F.A.C.; Section 10.3.3.2, Volume I]

4.

Please address the following relating to the construction plans regarding the on site wetland
preserves and off-site conservation area (Rule 62-330.301, F.A.C. and Section 10, Volume I):

a. Please demonstrate how the hydroperiod of the preserves will be maintained or improved.
Please demonstrate that the proposed stormwater design will not adversely affect the
hydrology of preserved wetlands. Please depict modeling results of the 5yr-1day event in a
hydrograph for the wetlands within the controlled basin area and provide additional supporting
information for how the hydroperiod of the wetlands outside of the controlled basin area will
be maintained. [Rule 62-330.301 F.A.C., Section C -Form 62-330.060(1), F.A.C., Section 10
Vol. I, & Section 3.12 Vol. II].

b. Please provide cross-sections and details for pipes/control structures discharging into the
preserve area(s) that include topographic information/elevations to ensure that there is
positive outfall into the wetland areas.

c. Please clarify if there will be a spreader swale or equivalent measure used to reduce
erosive velocities entering into the conservation easement. Please provide details of the
spreader swale or equivalent measure that include the invert elevation of the pipe discharging
into the swale, existing and proposed grades, and length and width of the spreader swale. In
addition, please provide a revegetation plan for all temporary wetland and upland buffer
impacts associated with the installation of structures, pipes, or spreader swale construction.

d. Please provide a corrective action plan for any adverse effects of the proposed discharge
to the existing conservation easement due to the proposed activity [Sections 10.2.4 and
10.2.7, Volume I]

5.

Please contact Liz Blessing, Environmental Analyst 4 at (239) 338-2929 ext 7743 or at
eblessin@sfwmd.gov to arrange a site visit to assess current conditions of the wetlands and
the new proposed discharge area. [Sections 7 and 10, Vol. I, Rule 62-330.071 F.A.C.] 

6.

Tamarindo, Application No. 240916-45732
March 7, 2025 
Page 2 of 6

 

Page 18



 

The submitted plans, drainage calculations, and technical reports were not properly signed
and sealed by a registered professional per digital signature or electronic signature
requirements per Rule 61G15-23.004 & 61G15-23.005, F.A.C. The requirements for
electronic signatures include a scanned copy of the physical signed and sealed registered
professional signature document, and the electronically signed and sealed engineering
documents with text indicating an electronic signature is being used. Alternatively, for digital
signatures a third-party digital signatures are acceptable with text indicating the document has
been digitally signed. Please see the link for reference of requirements: https://fbpe.org/legal/
signing-and-sealing-engineering-documents/.  [F.A.C Ch 61G15-23 and Section 4.2.3(b), Vol.
I]

7.

Regarding Comment No. 10 in the previous RAI letter and the response provided, it has
become evident that the proposed control elevations are lower than the wet season water
table elevation. The response indicates the control elevation was increased, however, it does
not provide any comparison of the proposed control elevation to the wet season water table
elevation and any adverse impacts the difference may create. As previously requested,
please address the following:

A. Per Section 3.10 of AH Vol. II, systems shall be designed to: 
(a) maintain existing water table elevations in existing wellfield cones of depression;
(b) preserve site environmental values (see Section 10.0 of Applicant’s Handbook Volume I);
(c) not waste freshwater;
(d) not lower water tables which would adversely affect the existing rights of others; and
(e) preserve site ground water recharge characteristics.

Please directly address each criteria above individually in regards to the proposed SWM
system design. If any of the criteria can not be met, please provide plans and calculations
which mitigate any adverse impacts or conditions.

B. Per Section 3.11 of AH Vol. II, detention and control elevations shall be set to accomplish
3.10 and are subject to the following criteria:
(a) Wetland protection elevations;
(b) Consistency with surrounding land and project control elevations and water tables;
(c) Possible restrictions by other agencies to include tree protection and landscape
ordinances;
(d) Consistency with water use permits; and
(e) A maximum depth of six feet below natural ground.

Please directly address each criteria above individually in regards to the proposed SWM
system design. If any of the criteria can not be met, please provide plans and calculations
which mitigate any adverse impacts or conditions.

8.

The revisions made to the model appear to indicate a constant discharge of groundwater after
all stormwater runoff has been discharged. Staff acknowledges the method used to simulate
the groundwater component in the modeling is a base flow of 2.7 cfs into Lake 2 of Sub-basin
2. However, this method does not appear to accurately reflect the variable flow of
groundwater into the lakes especially in the annual model provided. Based on the variable
water surface elevations in the lake, the groundwater elevations, and the variable driving
head between the two elevations, please provide a model that takes into account the variable

9.

Tamarindo, Application No. 240916-45732
March 7, 2025 
Page 3 of 6

 

Page 19



flow of groundwater into the lakes based on the head available between the water surface in
the lakes and the wet season water table. [Form 62-330.060(1).1.3, F.A.C.]

Please address the following regarding the revised SWM report, calculations, models, and
technical reports: [Form 62-330.060(1), F.A.C.]

a) Please provide a Water Management Summary table in the SWM report, similar to the
table on sheet 6 of plans, that also includes peak discharges from CS-1, CS-2, and the
proposed pump separately.

b) Please provide a summary table in the SWM Report of the results from the existing and
proposed models for Amity East and West. Include existing and proposed peak stages and
discharge rates.  

c) Please address the wet season water table elevation in the "Required Modification to
Proposed Project" section of the SWM report. 

d) Some of the model reports include headers which reference previous design conditions
which are no longer proposed, please revise. 

e) Please provide a narrative discussion in the SWM report describing the proposed pumping
expected throughout the year during and after the design storm events and the model results.
Please include pumping durations expected and frequency of expected pumping throughout
the year.

f) How was the Sabal Palm tailwater determined? The tailwaters used appear to be the same
as the Henderson Canal tailwaters, however the invert of the Sabal Palm Road ditch does not
appear to be taken into consideration. Documentation in the previous permits indicate the
Sabal Palm Road ditch had an invert elevation of over 6 feet.

g) How was the tailwater for the L1 Pump link determined? It appears the tailwaters in the
model do not account for the invert of the bubble-up spreader structure. 

h) The model indicates that CS-2 and the L1 Pump discharge to the same tailwaters. Please
provide additional information on why this is an appropriate methodology considering the
location of the discharge points for each. 

i) The Pump-On elevation is below the water quality elevation and therefore will discharge
untreated stormwater. Please revise the SWM system to provide the required water quality
treatment prior to off-site discharge. 

j) Throughout the SWM report and technical reports, the flooding on the site is attributed to
heavy rainfall or adjacent control elevations. Please address if the wet season water table
elevation is an additional cause of the flooding on site. Please revise the documents
accordingly. 

10.

Please revise the plans and report to designate the raised inlets in the lakes as control
structures since they are required to be certified and maintained at the proposed elevations. 

11.

Regarding the "07 Conservation Area Well Data" document, please provide the location of
Well #5 on the Well Location Map. 

12.

Tamarindo, Application No. 240916-45732
March 7, 2025 
Page 4 of 6

 

Page 20



As requested in Comment No. 3.A of the previous RAI letter, please revise the lake cross
sections to indicate the areas and elevations where groundwater is expected to flow into the
lakes. [Section 4.2.3(b), A.H. Vol. I]

13.

Regarding the response to Comment No. 4 of the previous RAI letter, the Tamarindo
Groundwater Flow Calculation Technical Memorandum appears to indicate a wet season
water table elevation of 8.7 feet in Lake 2. This conflicts with the starting water surface
elevations in the modelling. How will the groundwater table be kept at the control elevation in
between storm events? Will pumping be necessary when the lake levels rise due to the wet
season water table and not due to rainfall and storm events? As currently proposed, the SWM
system design and modeling does not appear to address the wet season water table at the
project site. Please provide a narrative response addressing these concerns and provide
revised calculations and models that reflect these conditions. Additional comments may be
required to fully address this situation. [Section C, Form 62-330.060(1), F.A.C.

14.

If any of the items in this RAI need clarification or discussion, please contact:Elizabeth Blessing,
Environmental Reviewer at (239) 338-2929 Ext. 7743 or via email at eblessin@sfwmd.gov;
Jonathan Wadas, P.E., Section Leader at 7731 or via email at jwadas@sfwmd.gov; and Rich
Walker, Property Analyst at (561) 682-6741 or via email at rdwalker@sfwmd.gov.

In accordance with Section 5.5.4, ERP AH Vol. I, adopted by reference in Subsection 62.330.010
(4)(a), FAC review of the application will not resume until a substantive response to each
comment has been received.

Please submit the complete response electronically on the District's RegPermitting website at
www.sfwmd.gov/regpermitting using the 'Submit Additional Information' link. Information regarding
RegPermitting is enclosed.  Alternatively, please provide one original hard copy of the requested
information, labeled with the application number, to the Fort Myers Service Center.

If a complete response is not provided within 90 days of this letter, this application will be
processed for denial, in accordance with Section 5.5.3.5 ERP AH Vol. I. If additional time is
necessary, please submit a request for an extension via the RegPermitting before the 90-day
period ends, including a description of the circumstances requiring the extension of time.

For projects where more than 90 days will be needed to develop a complete application, it is
recommended that the applicant withdraw the current application and resubmit a complete
application at a later date.  The processing fee, if paid, can be applied to a new application that is
submitted within 365 days, pursuant to Rule 62-330.071(3), FAC.  If the application is denied by
the agency, fees will not be returned or credited.

Sincerely,

Melissa M. Lawrence, P.E. 
Bureau Chief, Environmental Resource Bureau 

c:       Chuch Adams, Tamarindo Community Development District * 

Tamarindo, Application No. 240916-45732
March 7, 2025 
Page 5 of 6

Page 21



      Michael Pappas, PE, RWA Inc * 
      Brandy Kelley, Forestar Usa Real Estate Group Inc * 

Tamarindo, Application No. 240916-45732
March 7, 2025 
Page 6 of 6

 

Page 22



ATTACHMENT IV

Wetlands Evaluation Memo

Page 23



TURRELL, HALL & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
Marine & Environmental Consulting 

 
- -643- -  

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:    Michael Pappas – RWA Engineering 
 
FROM: Tim Hall 
 
DATE:  February 5, 2025 
 
SUBJECT: Evaluation of wetlands south of Tamarindo and east of Verona Walk. 
 

 
Mike, 
 
Acting on a request from you all and Roger Copp from Water Science Associates, I went out into the 
wetland areas on the south side of Sabal Palm Road and east of the Verona Walk development. The 
purpose of the evaluation was to determine if the wetland (and upland) habitats in this area could 
accept additional stormwater outfall from the Tamarindo Development. My understanding is that the 
Tamarindo Development is looking for an alternative/additional outfall to address flooding concerns 
within the development during heavy or protracted rainfall events. 
 
The purpose of the evaluation was to examine the habitats within the area identified (see Figure 1) 
and determine whether or not that area could accept additional water during the rainy season without 
adversely impacting the habitat. To that end, we looked at existing vegetation, signs of hydrology 
(high water marks, adventitious rooting, cypress knees, etc.), signs of potential drainage (soil 
subsidence, stressed vegetation, etc.), and signs of wildlife utilization.  
 
Evidence of standing water was observed in all of the wetland areas. No evidence of soil subsidence 
or other prolonged drainage was readily apparent. High water marks were noted in several cypress 
trees for later location and elevation determination by survey. The high water indicators were 
marked with nails that could be shot by the surveyors so that elevations could be determined (see 
Figures 2).   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 

 
Figure 1 General Location of wetlands and high water indicators observed 

 
 
Figure 2 Typical high water mark 

 

Page 25



 

The general habitat observed in the proposed outfall areas was a scattered cypress flatwood with a 
mix of cypress and slash pine trees, a relatively open mid-story, and various grass and herb 
groundcovers. While the habitat did appear to be in relatively good shape, there were pockets of 
more facultative and upland plants that could indicate that some drainage has occurred. The 
facultative wetland and obligate wetland plants observed could benefit for additional hydrology, 
especially with respect to duration of inundation. The vegetation present could withstand slightly 
higher water levels for short periods of time without adverse impacts. Slightly higher water levels 
would equate to 2 to 4 inches of additional depth for less than 30 days. An overall extension of the 
period of inundation of 30 to 60 days would not adversely impacts the area and would be beneficial 
throughout the habitat. The upland habitats present also could withstand the slightly higher water 
levels for short time frames.  
 
Figure 3 Typical Cypress flatwood habitat within the assessment area.  

 
 
Figure 4 Typical Marsh habitat within the assessment area. 

 

Page 26



 

 
Soils within the assessment area were generally porous sand showing signs of stripping associated 
with wetland soils. The sandy nature of the soils would also accommodate the additional water 
proposed to be placed within these areas. In addition to the surficial sheet flow, the soils also allow 
for water movement down through the soil as the site dries out. The additional water proposed will 
not adversely affect the soils throughout the assessment area. 
 
Figure 5 Typical sandy soil within the assessment area.  

 
 
Based on the survey results, the high water indicators within the assessment area are all around 9 to 
10 inches above the existing ground. Past studies indicate that the hydrology of cypress wetlands 
includes an annual average depth range from 1.5 ft. below the soil surface to 1.5 ft. above, and an 
annual average duration of flooding range of 5 to 9 months.  
 
The modelling provided for the proposed changes indicated that there could be a change in high 
water elevation of 2 to 3 inches and increase in the duration of inundation for 30 to 60 days. In my 
professional opinion, these changes would be beneficial to the habitats assessed within the proposed 
outfall area.  

Page 27



ATTACHMENT V

Proposed Tamarindo CDD Discharge 
to VeronaWalk CDD Lakes – Alternative II

Page 28



D
-X

D-X

D
-X

TY AR
Y

A
LL

A
M

A
N

D
A

E
S

TA
TE

S
1.

3 
A

C
R

E
S

RED BIRD LANE

SA
BA

L 
PA

LM
 R

O
AD

LA
K

E
 #

1
2.

84
 A

C.

9.
10

10
.2

3

9.
10

9.
80

9.
60

9.
77

10
.0

9

9.
49

10
.1

1

10
.5

9

10
.2

3

9.
10

ST
R.

 #
1-

9

ST
R.

 #
1-

11

ST
R.

 #
1-

26

ST
R.

 #
1-

27

ST
R.

 #
1-

31
ST

R.
 #

1-
30

ST
R.

 #
1-

13

ST
R.

 #
1-

12

ST
R.

 #
1-

19

ST
R.

 #
1-

18

ST
R.

 #
1-

23

ST
R.

 #
1-

24

ST
R.

 #
1-

38

ST
R.

 #
1-

39

ST
R.

 #
1-

40
ST

R.
 #

1-
14

ST
R.

 #
1-

17

ST
R.

 #
1-

20

ST
R.

 #
1

22

ST
R.

 #
1-

33

ST
R.

 #
1-

15

ST
R.

 #
1-

25

ST
R.

 #
1-

28

ST
R.

 #
1-

29

ST
R.

 #
1-

10

ST
R.

 #
1-

16

ST
R.

 #
1-

21

ST
R.

 #
1-

4

ST
R.

 #
1-

1

ST
R.

 #
1-

2

ST
R.

 #
1-

3

ST
R.

 #
1-

6

ST
R.

 #
1-

5

ST
R.

 #
1-

8

ST
R.

 #
1-

7

ST
R.

 #
1-

35

ST
R.

 #
1-

36

ST
R.

 #
1-

34

15
" R

CP

15
" R

CP
18

" R
CP

15
" R

CP

15
" R

CP

18
" R

CP

36
" R

CP

36
" R

CP

30
" R

CP

30
" R

CP

24
" R

CP

18
" R

CP
36

" R
CP

36
" R

CP

36
" R

CP
36

" R
CP

36
" R

CP

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

15
" R

CP

10
" H

DP
E

10
" H

DP
E

15
" R

CP

18
" R

CP

24
" R

CP

24
" R

CP

30
" R

CP

30
" R

CP10
" H

DP
E

24
" R

CP

SPIAGGIO CTD
EA

U
VI

LL
E

LO
O

P

TAMARINDO LANE

A
M

E
N

IT
Y

C
E

N
TE

R

 1 2 3 4 5 6

 7

 8

 1
1

 1
0

 9

 1
2

 1
3

 1
4

 1
5

 1
6

 1
7

 1
8

 1
9 2

0

 2
1

 2
2 2
3

 2
4

 3
9

 4
0

 4
1

 4
2

 4
3

 4
4

 4
5  4
6

 5
4 5

5

 5
6

 5
7 5
8

 5
9

 2
8

 2
7

 2
6

 2
5

 3
4

 3
3

 3
2

 3
1

 3
0

 2
9

 3
5

 3
6

 3
7

 3
8

 5
3

 5
2

 5
1

 5
0

 4
9 4

8

 4
7

9.
10

9.
10

9.
75

9.
77

9.
80

9.
10

9.
50

9.
109.

82

ST
R.

 #
1-

37

30
" R

CP

30
" R

CP

ST
R.

 #
SP

-3
15

" R
CP

15
" R

CP

ST
R.

 #
SP

-1

ST
R.

 #
SP

-2

ST
R.

 #
1-

6B

ST
R.

 #
1-

6A

6'
 M

IN
 C

HA
IN

LI
N

K 
FE

N
CE

/
W

AL
L 

AD
JA

CE
N

T 
TO

 L
AK

E

N
K 

FE
N

CE
/

N
T 

TO
 L

AK
E

PE
RM

IM
ET

ER
 B

ER
M

M
IN

. E
LE

V.
 =

 9
.5

1
(S

UB
-B

AS
IN

 1
 T

YP
.)

S
U

B
-B

A
S

IN
 #

1
26

.1
2 

AC
.

ST
R.

 #
1-

47

18
" R

CP

ST
R.

 #
1-

46

18
" R

CP

18
" H

DP
E

15
" R

CP

15
" R

CP

10
" H

DP
E

18
" H

DP
E

ST
R.

 #
1-

41

ST
R.

 #
1-

43

ST
R.

 #
1-

42

ST
R.

 #
1-

44

EX
. S

TR
. #

JB
-0

1

EX
. S

TR
. #

VG
-1

EX
. S

TR
. #

VG
-2

EX
. S

TR
. #

M
ES

-2

EX
. S

TR
. #

M
ES

-1

EX
. 1

5"
 R

CP

EX
. 1

5"
 R

CP
EX

. 1
5"

 R
CP

14
" P

VC

ST
R.

 #
PU

M
P 

W
EL

L

ST
R.

 #
28

7

30
" H

DP
E

ST
R.

 #
L1

 C
S-

2

30
" H

DP
E

O
UT

FA
LL

 S
TR

UC
TU

RE
(A

LT
ER

N
AT

IV
E 

2)

V
E

R
O

N
A

W
A

LK

14
" P

VC

14
" P

VC

HO
RI

Z.
 S

CA
LE

 (F
UL

L)
:

DA
TE

CH
EC

KE
D

DR
AW

N

RG
E:

TW
P:

SE
C:

DA
TE

:

TI
TL

E:

CL
IE

N
T:

PR
O

JE
CT

:

O
F

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:
SH

EE
T 

N
UM

BE
R:

RE
VI

SI
O

N
RE

V 
#

HO
RI

Z.
 S

CA
LE

 (H
AL

F)
:

DE
SI

GN
ED

:

DR
AW

N
:

VE
RT

. S
CA

LE
 (F

UL
L)

:

VE
RT

. S
CA

LE
 (H

AL
F)

:
FI

LE
 N

AM
E:

FL
O

RI
DA

 L
IC

EN
SE

 N
O

.

TA
M

AR
IN

DO
FO

RE
ST

AR

6
37

12
00

30
.0

2.
01

JA
N

.,2
02

0

1"
 =

 1
00

'

1"
 =

 2
00

'

23
50

S
26

E

KM
W

DL
P

N
/A

N
/A

06
 1

20
03

00
20

1C
 D

P0
1 

VW
47

05
9

CH
RI

ST
O

PH
ER

 O
. W

RI
GH

T,
 P

.E
.

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
TA

M
AR

IN
DO

 D
IS

CH
AR

GE
TO

 V
ER

O
N

AW
AL

K 
LA

KE

Fe
et

0
10

0
20

0

66
10

 W
ill

ow
 P

ar
k 

Dr
iv

e,
 S

ui
te

 2
00

N
ap

le
s, 

Fl
or

id
a 

34
10

9
(2

39
) 5

97
-0

57
5 

 F
AX

: (
23

9)
 5

97
-0

57
8

w
w

w
.co

ns
ul

t-
rw

a.
co

m
Fl

or
id

a 
Ce

rti
fic

at
es

 o
f A

ut
ho

riz
at

io
n

EB
 7

66
3 

   
LB

69
52

W
A

TE
R

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
DE

SC
RI

PT
IO

N
SU

B-
BA

SI
N

 1
SU

B-
BA

SI
N

 2
SU

B-
BA

SI
N

 3
SU

B-
BA

SI
N

 4
CO

N
TR

O
L 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
6.

71
 N

AV
D

6.
71

 N
AV

D
5.

71
 N

AV
D

5.
71

 N
AV

D

25
 Y

EA
R 

3 
DA

Y 
PE

AK
ST

AG
E

9.
04

 N
AV

D
8.

92
 N

AV
D

8.
73

 N
AV

D
8.

68
 N

AV
D

25
 Y

EA
R 

3 
DA

Y
RA

IN
FA

LL
11

.5
0 

IN
.

11
.5

0 
IN

.
11

.5
0 

IN
.

11
.5

0 
IN

.

10
0 

YE
AR

 3
 D

AY
 P

EA
K

ST
AG

E
9.

51
 N

AV
D

9.
39

 N
AV

D
9.

23
 N

AV
D

9.
08

 N
AV

D

10
0 

YE
AR

 3
 D

AY
RA

IN
FA

LL
15

.0
0 

IN
.

15
.0

0 
IN

.
15

.0
0 

IN
.

15
.0

0 
IN

.

M
IN

. P
RO

P 
RO

AD
CR

O
W

N
9.

04
 N

AV
D

8.
92

 N
AV

D
8.

90
 N

AV
D

8.
90

 N
AV

D

M
IN

. P
RO

P 
BE

RM
9.

51
 N

AV
D

9.
50

 N
AV

D
9.

50
 N

AV
D

9.
50

 N
AV

D

FE
M

A 
BF

E
8.

5-
10

 N
AV

D

BF
E 

+1
*

9.
5-

11
.0

 N
AV

D

M
IN

. P
RO

P 
FI

N
IS

HE
D

FL
O

O
R

10
.6

-1
1 

N
AV

D

25
 Y

EA
R 

3 
DA

Y
PR

E-
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T
DI

SC
HA

RG
E

38
.3

8 
CF

S

25
 Y

EA
R 

3 
DA

Y
PO

ST
-D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

DI
SC

HA
RG

E
11

.7
2 

CF
S

ST
O

RM
 S

EW
ER

ST
O

RM
 IN

LE
T/

JU
N

CT
IO

N
 B

O
X

ST
O

RM
 F

LA
RE

D 
EN

D

D
-X

PR
O

PO
SE

D
EX

IS
TI

N
G

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

LA
KE

 A
RE

A

PR
ES

ER
VE

 A
RE

A

PO
IN

T 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

12
.5

0
12

.50

N
/A

N
/A

CO
M

M
O

N
 A

RE
A 

SI
DE

W
AL

K

AR
CH

AE
O

LO
GI

CA
L 

SI
TE

N
/A

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
S 

BA
SE

D 
O

N
 N

O
RT

H 
AM

ER
IC

AN
VE

RT
IC

AL
 D

AT
UM

 N
AV

D8
8.

 C
O

N
VE

RS
IO

N
 F

RO
M

N
AV

D8
8 

TO
 N

GV
D2

9:
 N

AV
D8

8 
+1

.2
9=

N
GV

D2
9.

LI
TT

O
RA

L 
PL

AN
TI

N
G 

AR
EA

N
/A

N
O

TE
:

PR
O

HI
BI

TE
D 

EX
O

TI
CS

 A
N

D 
N

UI
SA

N
CE

 S
PE

CI
ES

 S
HA

LL
 B

E
RE

M
O

VE
D 

IN
 P

ER
PE

TU
IT

Y 
AN

D 
CA

TT
AI

LS
 S

HA
LL

 N
O

T 
EX

CE
ED

10
%

 C
O

VE
RA

GE
 O

F 
TH

E 
LS

PA
.

* C
O

LL
IE

R 
M

IN
. R

EQ
UI

RE
M

EN
T

Page 29



ATTACHMENT VI

VeronaWalk CDD Approved ERP Plans Sheets

Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE VERONA 
WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A 
PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Verona Walk Community 
Development District (“District”) is required by Chapter 190.008, Florida Statutes, to approve a 
Proposed Budget for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2025/2026 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2025/2026 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.       A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for July 17, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. in 
the Town Center at Verona Walk, 8090 Sorrento Lane, Naples, Florida 34114, for the purpose of 
receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 17th day of April, 2025. 
 

 
ATTEST: VERONA WALK 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 

Page 44



 Verona Walk
  Community Development District

  Proposed Budget For
  Fiscal Year 2025/2026

  October 1, 2025 - September 30, 2026

Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



From: bphirniak@aol.com <bphirniak@aol.com> 
Sent: Monday, April 7, 2025 12:17 PM 
To: Kathleen Meneely <kmeneely@sdsinc.org> 
Cc: BOHDAN HIRNIAK <bphirniak@aol.com> 
Subject: Monthly Update 3/20/2025 - 4/17/2025  

  

Kathleen - for your purposes - Bohdan 

 

1)  Lake inspection for erosion, water quality and littoral health conducted, and all items 
met or exceeded requirements.  All is positive. 

 

2}  Outfall inspection conducted and all is acceptable. 

 

3) Lake levels continue to drop because of the lack of rain.  We are about 6" lower than last 
reporting period.   

 

4) HOA lawn spraying continues without any negative  indicators, and lake bank mowing if 
awaiting regrowth once rains start. 

 

5) Water samples from last quarter are all within acceptable ranges. 

 

6) Coordination with CDD lake management contractor continuous well. 

 

7) Ongoing pool construction on Toscana Ct. and Julia Ln. continues without any negative 
aspects. 

 

8) Three drainage inspections performed and all were good. 

 

9) No rain events.          

 

Page 52



Verona Walk
Community Development District

   Financial Report For
March 2025

Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56


	Verona Walk Community Development District - April 17, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Book 
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	March 20, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Presentation – Tamarindo Proposal to Discharge into Verona Walk
	Update on CDD/HOA Maintenance Memo of Understanding
	Consider Resolution No. 2025-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Proposed Budget
	Field Inspector Update
	Financials




